
 

AGENDA 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MONTHLY MEETING 

TUESDAY, MARCH 11, 2025 – 10:00 AM 

THIS MEETING WILL BE HELD AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE 17TH FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM AND
IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  YOU WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE BUILDING.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBMISSION OF PUBLIC COMMENTS ARE LOCATED 
ON THE PAGES FOLLOWING THE AGENDA 

AGENDA 

I. Roll Call

II. Approval of Minutes of the Meeting of February 11, 2025

III. Executive Director’s Report

IV. Administrative Matters

A. Interagency Transfer

The properties below are proposed for transfer to the Philadelphia Department of Public 
Property (DPP) for disposition, reuse and/or management by the DPP, specifically for 
expansion of the Schuylkill River Trail in the Second (2nd) Council District.

• 2444* Island Avenue, 7401* Wheeler Street (CD 2) (* denotes properties being 
transferred by the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

V. Property Dispositions

A. Development – Mixed-Income Housing (unsolicited) - REMOVED
1. The properties below are proposed for disposition to BVG S Philadelphia AH, LLC to 

develop three (3) affordable homeownership units and two (2) market-rate homes in the 
First (1st) Council District. The homes fit within the context of the neighborhood. The 
affordable units will consist of one (1) two-story single-family home with a finished 
basement, containing three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 1,470 square feet, as 
well as two (2) duplex units without a basement, containing two (2) bedrooms and two (2) 
bathrooms at 1,241 square feet each. The affordable units will be sold to households with 
an income at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of $280,000, but only the 
single-family home will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the 
Key Program. All affordable units will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. 
The three-story market-rate units will have a finished basement and contain three (3) 
bedrooms and two and a half (2.5) bathrooms at approximately 1,800 square feet each. 
The estimated sales price will be $550,000. The application was unsolicited and evaluated 
pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 1 of 72



• 100 Emily Street; 612* and 612 Rear* Wolf Street; 2549 S. 3rd Street; 2117* S. 6th
Street (CD 1) (* denotes properties being transferred by the Philadelphia
Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

2. The properties below are proposed for disposition to C Schofield Finish Carpentry LLC
to develop three (3) homeownership units in the Third (3rd) Council District. The units
will consist of two (2) affordable single-family homes and one (1) market-rate single-
family home. The homes fit within the context of the neighborhood. The two (2)
affordable single-family homes will be two stories, with an unfinished basement, and
contain three (3) bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 1,100 square feet each. They
will be sold to households with an income at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum
sales price of $280,000, will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s
Turn the Key Program, and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants.
The market-rate unit will be three (3) stories, with an unfinished basement, front
porch and roof deck, and contain three (3) bedrooms and two and a half (2.5)
bathrooms at 1,400 square feet. The estimated sales price will be $349,000. The
application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP
plan will apply to this project.

• 5108* Chester Avenue; 6130* Ellsworth Street; 4910* Kingsessing Avenue (CD 3)
(* denotes properties being transferred by the City of Philadelphia or the
Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

3. The properties below are proposed for disposition to ReNew LLC to develop five (5)
homeownership units in the Fourth (4th) Council District. The units will consist of three
(3) affordable single-family homes and two (2) market-rate single-family homes. The
homes fit within the context of the neighborhood. The three (3) affordable single-
family homes will be two (2) stories, without a basement, and contain three (3)
bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms at 1,000 square feet each. They will be sold to
households with incomes at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sales price of
$280,000, will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key
Program, and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The two (2)
market-rate units will be three (3) stories, with a finished basement, and contain three
(3) bedrooms and three and a half (3.5) bathrooms at 1,500 square feet each. They
will be sold at an estimated sales price of $400,000. The application was unsolicited
and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this
project.
• 3323 W. Allegheny Avenue; 3216 N. Newkirk Street; 2942* and 2944 W. Wishart

Street; 3212* N. 33rd Street (CD 4) (* denotes properties being transferred by the City
of Philadelphia or the Philadelphia Redevelopment Authority to the Land Bank)

VI. Public Comment (Old & New Business)

VII. Adjournment

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 2 of 72



 

 

 
 
FROM:  Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., Senior Counsel 

RE:  Philadelphia Land Bank March 11, 2025 Board Meeting  
Board Meeting Notice, Public Attendance, and Comment Procedures 

DATE:   February 27, 2025 
 
The Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank (“Land Bank”) is scheduled for 
Tuesday, March 11, 2025, with the executive session to begin at 9:30 A.M. and the meeting to begin at 
10:00 A.M or as soon as the Executive Session has ended.   
 

THIS  MEETING WILL BE IN-PERSON AT 1234 MARKET STREET IN THE 17TH 
FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM AND IS OPEN TO PUBLIC ATTENDEES AND 
FOR PUBLIC COMMENTS AND QUESTIONS.   
YOU WILL NEED VALID IDENTIFICATION TO ENTER THE BUILDING. 

 
PLEASE NOTE: To participate in the meeting, you must sign in before entering the conference room. 
This requirement is necessary to allow us to collect the names of participants as required by law.   

The Board agenda and package will be available to view no later than five (5) days prior to the Board 
meeting at https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/.  Public comments 
and questions regarding the matters that are posted on the agenda may be submitted by email prior to 
the Board meeting and/or in person if attending the Board meeting.   

Public Comment BEFORE Board Meeting: 
Email the following information to andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov by 3:00 p.m. on Monday, March 10, 2025: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 
• Contact information (your email address); 
• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  
• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Questions/comments submitted via email by the 3:00 pm deadline will be summarized at the Board meeting, 
answered or addressed to the extent the Board chooses, and attached to the minutes of the meeting.   
 
Public Comment DURING Board Meeting: 
If you wish to comment on a particular agenda item, you must indicate that on the sign-in sheet before the 
meeting begins. Once recognized by the Board Chair, individuals will be allowed two (2) minutes for public 
comment per person per agenda item.  

• The Chair reserves the right to limit comments when more than a certain number of people have the 
same comments on the same matter. 

• Staff will assist with timing and identifying individuals as needed.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 3 of 72

https://phdcphila.org/who-we-are/boards/philadelphia-land-bank-board/
mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


 

 

Rules of Conduct: 
• Comments must be related to the specific agenda item in question.  
• There will be no personal attacks or hate speech against anyone, including applicants, staff members, 

Board members, attendees or other members of the public.  
 
Minutes of Board Meeting: 
The draft minutes of the Board meeting will be made publicly available when the Board package for the next 
Board meeting is posted on the Land Bank Board website.  Once approved by the Board, the approved 
minutes will be posted under the appropriate Board meeting date on the Land Bank website.   
 
If you have a question about an agenda item after the meeting concludes, please submit it to 
andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov with the following information: 

• Your full name and group or company affiliation, if applicable; 
• Contact information (your email address); 
• Identify the agenda item that you are addressing; and  
• State your question/comment in a clear and concise manner. 

Land Bank staff will provide a response to the extent possible. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 4 of 72

mailto:andrea.saah@phdc.phila.gov


PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025 Page 1 of 26 

PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK 

FEBRUARY 11, 2025 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES (DRAFT) 

A Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land Bank was held on Tuesday, 
February 11, 2025, at 1234 Market Street, 17th Floor Boardroom, Philadelphia, PA 19107, of which 
proper notices were given.    

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 10:03 am. 

Ms. Imredy Saah announced that prior to the Public Session, the Board held an Executive Session 
during which Mr. Rodriguez reviewed the meeting agenda and reported on the status of the Land 
Bank’s ability to acquire property at sheriff’s sales and the application of Mixed-Income 
Neighborhood overlays to Turn the Key-eligible projects.     

Item I 
Roll Call 

The following members of the Board of Directors reported present: Herbert Wetzel, Cornelius 
Brown, Nicholas Dema, Jenny Greenberg, Michael Johns, Rebecca Lopez Kriss and Majeedah 
Rashid.   

Darwin Beauvais, Andrew Goodman, Maria Gonzalez, and Kelvin Jeremiah were absent from the 
Board meeting. 

The following Land Bank staff members were present: Angel Rodriguez, Andrea Imredy Saah, Esq., 
Karen Anaya, Todd Hestand, Cristina Martinez, Mathen Pullukattu, Brian Romano, Ashley Stukes-
Martin and Carolyn Terry. 

Public Attendees: The list of public attendees follows these minutes. 

A quorum of Directors was present, and the meeting, having been duly convened, proceeded with 
business. 

Ms. Imredy Saah reviewed the Board’s public comment policy and requested that attendees sign up 
to make public comments and sign the attendance sheet.  

Item II 
Approval of Board Minutes 

Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board regarding the minutes of the Board 
meeting of January 14, 2025.  There were none. 

Mr. Wetzel called for a motion regarding approval of the minutes. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 5 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 2 of 26 
 

Mr. Johns moved to approve the minutes.  Ms. Lopez-Kriss seconded the motion. 
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board approved the January 14, 2025 Board Meeting 
minutes.   

 
Item III 

Executive Director’s Report 
 
Mr. Rodriguez reported on approved home price increases for two more Turn the Key properties in 
BMK Properties’ Scattered Site project in the 1st Council District due to significant lending and 
construction cost increases since the projects were first approved. He then provided status updates for 
all Turn the Key projects, including ones he had to rescind in the 3rd and the 5th Council Districts 
because the District Councilmember did not introduce an approval resolution in Council. He also 
announced Turn the Key ribbon-cutting events scheduled for March and April of this year.  His 
complete report is attached to these minutes as Exhibit A.   
 
Mr. Dema asked about the average household size of the homebuyers.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that 
he will review the income certifications in order to provide a report about household size.   
 
Ms. Lopez-Kriss asked if there were other disposition resolutions that are at risk of not being 
introduced or other projects that are risk of being rescinded.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that there are 
several projects in the 7th Council District waiting for a Council resolution, and that he is waiting to 
hear back from the Council District since there was staff turnover.   
 
Chair Wetzel asked how many homes were being built on the parcel at the corner of 10th Street and 
Cecil B. Moore Avenue.  Mr. Rodriguez responded that fifteen (15) homes are being built.    
 
Mr. Johns noted the difference between the 822 units of Turn the Key housing approved for 
development versus the 400 homes currently under construction and asked about the average amount 
of time that elapses between Land Bank Board approval and the beginning of construction.  Mr. 
Rodriguez responded that many factors play a role in how quickly a project can get through the 
entitlements process after Board approval: whether a zoning variance is needed, whether properties 
need to be subdivided or consolidated before permits can be requested, how quickly properties can be 
transferred into the Land Bank and whether Geotech or other work requires a license agreement.  The 
Land Bank is currently working with the Department of Planning and Development and the City’s 
Department of Licenses & Inspections to speed up the process for obtaining zoning permits and 
construction permits.  Board members asked if they could attend these meetings, and Mr. Rodriguez 
indicated he would request that any interested Board member be allowed to join the meetings.  He 
also pointed out that once permits are in hand and the properties are conveyed to the developers, 
homes are being built quickly.   

 
Item IV 

Administrative Matters 
 

IV.A.  Interagency Transfer  
 
Mr. Rodriguez asked the Board to convey 923 West Butler Street in the 5th Councilmanic District to 
the City’s Department of Public Property.  The property will be used for the installation of 
stormwater infrastructure on a lot and expansion of the existing, adjacent playground.    

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 6 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 3 of 26 
 

 
Chair Wetzel called for questions from the Board.  There were none.   
 
No written comments were received prior to the Board meeting. 
 
No one from the public signed up to speak on this board item.    
 
Seeing no questions from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion.   
 
Ms. Lopez-Kriss moved to approve the interagency transfer to the City of Philadelphia.  Ms. 
Greenberg seconded the motion.   
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 923 West Butler Street to the City of Philadelphia (attached to these 
minutes as Exhibit B).    
 
IV. B.  Amendment to Approved Disposition  
 
Senior Development Specialist Mathen Pullukattu asked the Board to amend an already approved 
disposition to Mt. Vernon Manor Community Land Trust for the development of four (4) single-
family homes at 708, 710, 714 and 723 North Shedwick Street in the 3rd Council District.  The 
homes were to be sold to households at or below 80% AMI at a maximum price of $155,000, with 
the land on which the homes are built to remain in the Community Land Trust.   The developer has 
requested approval of a price increase to a maximum sale price of $199,000 due to a 20% increase in 
the size of the homes and a similar increase in estimated development costs, specifically lending and 
construction costs.   
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.   There were none.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez clarified that the unit size will still be two (2) bedrooms and two (2) baths.  There will 
be an increase in the square footage of each property.    
 
Ms. Saah informed the Board that one email was received from Mt. Vernon Manor CDC (attached to 
these minutes as Exhibit C), explaining its reasons for the price increase request, including a delay in 
receiving the license agreement for the Geotech testing to be conducted on the properties.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez clarified that license agreements can take time to provide because of the various 
insurance coverage requirements subcontractors must meet in order to enter onto and conduct testing 
on Land Bank-owned properties.  Ms. Imredy Saah further explained that many properties are still in 
the Department of Public Property’s or the Redevelopment Authority’s ownership when the 
developers want to conduct the testing, and it takes time to transfer them into the Land Bank’s 
inventory, especially if there are issues with the legal description or title issues.   
 
Mr. Dema asked about the specific types of insurance coverage required, and Ms. Imredy Saah 
responded that Geotech testing requires general commercial liability, workers compensation, 
pollution liability and professional liability insurance policies.    
 
No one from the public wished to comment on this agenda item.   
 
Seeing no further questions from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel called for a motion.   

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 7 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 4 of 26 
 

 
Mr. Johns moved to approve the requested changes to the project.  Mr. Dema seconded the motion.    
 
Upon motion made and seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution Amending 
Resolution 2024-7 to Approve Increase in Square Footage and Increase in Maximum Sale Price 
for Four Homeownership Units in Mt. Vernon Community Land Trust (attached to these 
minutes as Exhibit D).    

 
Item V 

Property Dispositions 
 
V.A.1.  Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited) 
 
Senior Development Specialist Todd Hestand announced that the next project was tabled from 
the December Board meeting with a request to the developer to conduct another community 
meeting.  He asked the Board to authorize the disposition of 705, 709 and 713 North 35th Street 
and 3518 and 3520 Wallace Street to Exclusive Property Group, LLC to develop five (5) single-
family homeownership units in the 3rd Council District.  Exclusive Property Group is a woman 
and minority business developer which is an alumnus of both JumpStart Philly and JumpStart 
Norristown.  The units will be two (2) stories, without a basement, and contain three (3) 
bedrooms and two (2) bathrooms, at approximately 1,200 square feet each. They will be sold to 
purchasers with a household income at or below 100% of AMI for a maximum sale price of 
$280,000. The homes will be eligible for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key 
Program and will be subject to a Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was 
unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the disposition policy, and an EOP plan will apply to this 
project.  
 
Mr. Hestand noted that 708 North 34th Street was removed from the original proposal due to the 
legitimacy of an adverse possession case on the lot, which is owned by the Department of Public 
Property, so the project went from six (6) to five (5) units.  Exclusive Property Group has 
followed all the same procedures as previously approved developments, they provided frontage-
specific plans for the various lot widths, and they hosted two community meetings, the first of 
which had eight (8) participants and the second of which had thirty-seven (37) participants.  At 
both meetings there was feedback about 3518 and 3520 Wallace Street as being previously 
conveyed, but it was confirmed that both  parcels were available for disposition.  Mr. Hestand 
confirmed that the developer was in attendance at this Board meeting with her team.   
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none.   
 
Chair Wetzel asked if any comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  Mrs. Imredy Saah 
proceeded to read a letter of partial support from Councilmember Gauthier stating her opposition to 
the inclusion of the Wallace Street properties in the project, as well as letters of support from Nicole 
Purvy of Better Than Success Real Estate League, Jordan Ferrarini of Trades for a Difference, Troy 
Hartsfield of Aubri Construction, Prudence Brown of Jumpstart Germantown, Angie Williamson of 
Jumpstart Philly, and David Langlieb of Philadelphia Accelerator Fund.  All letters received in 
reference to this disposition are attached to these minutes as Exhibit E.   
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none.   
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 8 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 5 of 26 
 

Chair Wetzel informed Mr. Rodriguez that the Board was open to an amendment to the resolution.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez informed the Board that the Board could amend the resolution to authorize Land Bank 
management to identify other publicly owned assets in the vicinity to replace 3518 and 3520 Wallace 
Street.  Chair Wetzel asked if the Board could authorize staff to find three (3) parcels, since the 
originally proposed project has six (6) lots, of which three (3) were being removed, and Mr. 
Rodriguez responded affirmatively.   
 
Mr. Rodriguez responded that staff would ensure the developer’s new development budget would be 
feasible with the same household income target and maximum sales price.  Ms. Imredy Saah stated 
that the Land Bank would have to post the proposed sale of the properties.  Chair Wetzel indicated 
his preference to provide the staff with flexibility so that this approval could be completed at today’s 
meeting.  Mr. Rodriguez stated it should be noted that this amendment to the existing resolution 
would be approved in deference to the letter submitted by the Councilmember, given that the 
Councilmember may not introduce the resolution if the project were approved with the currently 
included properties.   
 
Ms. Lopez-Kriss asked if staff received any public comments about 3518 and 3520 Wallace Street.  
Ms. Imredy Saah stated that the Land Bank received no other comments opposing the inclusion of 
the Wallace Street properties.  She also stated her concern about potential public opposition to the 
three new properties to be included in the project, and how the Board would want to handle such 
opposition. Mr. Rodriguez added that the replacement properties would have to be owned and 
available properties in the vicinity with no existing applications, which is always the standard that is 
used when evaluating an unsolicited application.  As Mr. Hestand mentioned when he presented to 
the Board, the community only has an anecdotal history that the Wallace Street properties belong to 
community members.  The City had unique products and programs like Donor Taker and Dollar 
House in the past, and the former Vacant Property Review Committee (VPRC) was approving the 
disposition of properties.  Many of those transactions were never completed, and after the revision to 
the disposition legislation which became effective in January 2020, all incomplete transactions were 
null and void.  The assertion that somebody has a legitimate claim to the Wallace Street properties is 
unfounded. Mr. Rodriguez would like everyone to understand that the Land Bank knows what it 
owns and has clear title to the properties once they are in its inventory.   
 
Mr. Wetzel stated his desire for the Board to support this developer who has an excellent track record.  
The project originally contained six (6) parcels, one was removed because of a lawsuit against the 
City of Philadelphia, and two (2)  do not have the Councilmember’s support. The goal is to make the 
project whole.    
 
Chair Wetzel called for a motion to amend the resolution to remove the Wallace Street properties and 
authorize the Executive Director to substitute properties in the nearby community for the three (3) 
properties that were removed for a total of six (6) parcels.     
 
Mr. Johns moved to approve the disposition. Mr. Dema seconded the motion.   
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board voted unanimously to amend the resolution as 
stated.   
 
Chair Wetzel then called for a motion regarding the amended resolution approving the disposition of 
the three properties on North 35tth Street and authorizing the Executive Director to replace the three 
removed properties with other properties in the neighborhood that are available for disposition.  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 9 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 6 of 26 
 

 
Mr. Johns moved to approve the disposition.  Mr. Dema seconded the motion.    
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 705 North 35th 709 North 35th Street, 713 North 35th Street, and 
Three Other Properties to be Selected in Substitution for 708 North 34th Street, 3518 Wallace 
Street and 3520 Wallace Street, to Exclusive Property Group, LLC (attached to these minutes as 
Exhibit F).   
 
Item V.A.2.  Development – Affordable Housing (unsolicited)  
 
Mr. Hestand asked the Board to authorize the disposition of 1124 South 56tth Street to Number One 
Investments, LLC to rehabilitate one (1) single-family homeownership unit in the Third (3rd) 
Council District. Number One Investments is a woman owned business enterprise.  The unit will be 
two stories, with a partially finished basement, and contain three (3) bedrooms and two and a half 
(2.5) bathrooms at approximately 1,800 square feet. It will be sold to a purchaser with a household 
income at or below 80% of AMI for a maximum sale price of $250,000. The home will be eligible 
for the Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn the Key Program and will be subject to a 
Declaration of Restrictive Covenants. The application was unsolicited and evaluated pursuant to the 
disposition policy. An EOP plan will apply to this project.   
 
Number One investments followed all the same procedures as previously approved developments, 
providing frontage specific plans and hosting two (2) community meetings.   The first meeting was 
held in December and the meeting had one (1) participant. Because of the low turnout, the developer 
hosted a second community meeting, which was held in January.  Five (5) participants attended the 
second meeting. There was no objectionable feedback at either community meeting.  The developer 
is in attendance at today’s Board meeting for any questions.    
 
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the Board.  There were none.   
 
Ms. Imredy Saah confirmed that no public comments were received prior to the Board meeting.  
Chair Wetzel called for questions or comments from the public.  There were none.   
 
Chair Wetzel asked if the applicant wanted to speak.   
 
Ms. Noelle Carter, the developer and owner of Number One Investments and a small business owner 
in Philadelphia, greeted the Board and attendees. Ms. Carter has lived in South Philadelphia for about 
eight (8) years and appreciates the opportunity to renovate this property.  It is next door to a home a 
client purchased a few years ago, and its renovation will improve the neighborhood.   
 
Seeing no further comments from the public or the Board, Chair Wetzel called for a motion.   
 
Ms. Rashid moved to approve the disposition.  Ms. Lopez-Kriss seconded the motion.    
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously approved the Resolution 
Authorizing Conveyance of 1124 South 56th Street to Number One Investments, LLC (attached 
to these minutes as Exhibit G).   

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 10 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 7 of 26 
 

Item VI 
Public Comment (Old & New Business) 

 
Chair Wetzel asked if there was any old or new business anyone wished to comment on.  Two people 
signed up for public comments.   
 
Ms. Lopez-Kriss asked how many properties in the surplus public property inventory are shells.  Mr. 
Rodriguez responded the number is less than one hundred (100) and explained that the Land Bank 
only acquires vacant land because of liability insurance issues.  The Land Bank owns a small portion 
of the total inventory of vacant structures, while the City, PHDC and the Philadelphia 
Redevelopment Authority own larger numbers of vacant structures.  If the safety of a PHDC, PRA or 
Land Bank structure is questionable, it is demolished.   
 
Chair Wetzel recognized Sari Bernstein, an attorney with the Public Interest Law Center (PILC). She 
works on PILC’s housing initiative and environmental justice initiative, including the garden justice 
legal initiative. She asked about the status of the Land Bank’s strategic planning process, which she 
stated was required by law to be completed on an annual basis and which provided the community 
with an important opportunity to help direct the Land Bank’s strategic vision.  Mr. Rodriguez 
clarified for the Board and attendees that the current Philadelphia Code (as revised by Council 
ordinance in November 2019 and effective January 2020) requires that the City’s Department of 
Planning and Development conduct a strategic planning process every three years, and that the Land 
Bank is included in the process but not responsible for conducting it. He recommended that Ms. 
Bernstein reach out to Jessie Lawrence for more information about the status of this strategic 
planning process.   
 
The second person who had signed up to speak no longer wished to comment. 

 
Item VII 

Adjournment 
 
Seeing no further comments from the Board or the public, Chair Wetzel thanked the Board and the 
public and called for a motion to adjourn. 
 
Mr. Johns moved to adjourn the meeting. Ms. Rashid seconded the motion.   
 
Upon motion made and duly seconded, the Board unanimously voted to adjourn at 10:50 am. 
 

  
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 11 of 72



PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 8 of 26 
 

 
PUBLIC ATTENDANCE SHEET 

 
PHILADELPHIA LAND BANK BOARD OF DIRECTORS REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, February 11, 2025, at 10:00 AM. 
 

User Name 
Yulonda Paul 

Mike Tomasetti 
Noelle Carter 
Sari Bernstein 
Troy Hartsfield 

Dion Forrest 
Kayana Johnson 

Perry Forrest 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 12 of 72



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 9 of 26 
 

 
 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 13 of 72



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 10 of 26 
 

 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 14 of 72



Exhibit A 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 11 of 26 
 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 15 of 72



Exhibit B 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 12 of 26 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - 6 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  
923 WEST BUTLER STREET 

TO CITY OF PHILADELPHIA 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 
(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the Land Bank to convey 923 West Butler Street (the “Property”) to the City of Philadelphia (the “City”) 
for disposition, reuse and/or management as determined by the City. 

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the City for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) is in the best 
interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved. 
 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 
of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 
 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on February 11, 2025. 

 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 16 of 72

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 13 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 17 of 72



Exhibit C 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 14 of 26 
 

 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 18 of 72



Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 15 of 26 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - 7 
 

RESOLUTION AMENDING RESOLUTION 2024-7 TO APPROVE INCREASE IN SQUARE 
FOOTAGE AND INCREASE IN MAXIMUM SALE PRICE FOR FOUR HOMEOWNERSHIP 

UNITS IN MT. VERNON MANOR COMMUNITY LAND TRUST 
 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 
(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 
conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”), pursuant to Resolution 2024-7 adopted on 

March 12, 2024 (the “Resolution”), approved the conveyance of 708, 710, 714 and 723 North Shedwick 
Street (each, a “Property”, collectively, the “Properties”) to Mt. Vernon Manor Community Land Trust 
(the “Developer”) for the development of four (4) single-family homeownership units (each, a “Unit”) to 
be sold to purchasers with a household income at or below eight percent (80%) of Area Median Income 
(“AMI”) for a price not to exceed One Hundred Fifty-Five Thousand U.S. Dollars ($155,000) (the 
“Maximum Sale Price”), with the Property underlying each Unit to remain in the Developer’s ownership 
under a 99-year lease to be granted to the Unit purchaser. 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to its acquisition of the Properties, the Developer decided to increase 

the area square footage within each unit by approximately twenty percent (20%). 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer has requested an increase in the Maximum Sale Price for each Unit 

to One Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand U.S. Dollars ($199,000) to cover increased development costs 
due to the increase in square footage and the general increase in construction costs for the project. 

 
WHEREAS, the requested increase in the Maximum Sale Price for the Units will not affect the 

household income eligibility limit of eighty percent (80%) of AMI. 
 
WHEREAS, the Board has determined that it is in the best interests of the Land Bank to approve 

the proposed increase in area square footage and an increase in the Maximum Sale Price for each Unit to 
One Hundred Ninety-Nine Thousand U.S. Dollars ($199,000).   

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. An increase in the area square footage and in the Maximum Sale Price for each Unit to One Hundred 
Ninety-Nine Thousand U.S. Dollars ($199,000) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby 
approved, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council.   
 

2. The approved revision complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 of the 
Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 

3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 
authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the purpose of this Resolution (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 19 of 72

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


Exhibit D 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 16 of 26 
 

supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 
 

4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 
necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 
 

5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on February 11, 2025. 

 
  
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 20 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 17 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 21 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 18 of 26 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 22 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 19 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 23 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 20 of 26 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 24 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 21 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 25 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 22 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 26 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 23 of 26 
 

 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 27 of 72



Exhibit E 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 24 of 26 
 

 
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 28 of 72



Exhibit F 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 25 of 26 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 8 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 705 NORTH 35TH STREET, 709 NORTH 
35TH STREET, 713 NORTH 35TH STREET, AND THREE OTHER PROPERTIES TO BE 

SELECTED IN SUBSTITUTION FOR 708 NORTH 34TH STREET, 3518 WALLACE STREET 
AND 3520 WALLACE STREET, TO EXCLUSIVE PROPERTY GROUP, LLC 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 

(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 
conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 
of the Land Bank to convey 705 North 35th Street, 709 North 35th Street, 713 North 35th Street, and 
three (3) additional Third (3rd) Council District properties to be selected by the Executive Director of the 
Land Bank in substitution for the properties known as 708 North 34th Street, 3518 Wallace Street and 
3520 Wallace Street, which were originally included in the disposition but removed at the Board’s behest, 
(collectively, the “Property”), to Exclusive Property Group, LLC (the “Purchaser”). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 
Bank that: 
 
1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Six Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($6,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 
resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 
2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on February 11, 2025.

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 29 of 72



Exhibit G 

PLB Board of Directors DRAFT Meeting Minutes for February 11, 2025  Page 26 of 26 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – 9 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  
1124 SOUTH 56TH STREET  

TO NUMBER ONE INVESTMENTS, LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank 
(the “Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property 
of the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and 
conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests 
of the Land Bank to convey 1124 South 56th Street (the “Property”) to Number One Investments, LLC 
(the “Purchaser”). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 
Bank that: 
 
1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Two Thousand Five Hundred and 00/100 U.S. 

Dollars ($2,500.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to 
approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 
2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to 
consummate the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from 
time to time and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of 
them, as may be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, 
supplements, and modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive 
Director and Senior Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this 
Resolution, and, when so executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and 
binding obligations of the Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on February 11, 2025. 

 
 
 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 30 of 72



 

 

 

 

 

 
MARCH 11, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

 
MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM III 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 31 of 72



 
 

To:  Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors  
From:  Angel Rodriguez, Executive Director 
RE:  Executive Director’s Report 
Date:  March 11, 2025 

 

Approved Changes to Approved Projects: 

Pursuant to Resolution No. 2023-32 allowing the Executive Director of the Land Bank, from 

time to time, on behalf of the Land Bank to approve an increase in the Maximum Price of 

affordable homeownership units constructed by a Developer as part of a Board-approved 

disposition, I have approved the increase of the Maximum Price for: 

• Unsolicited Application – Mixed Income Ludlow & 44th Street (CD 3) – Northern Libs 

Partners, LLC 

• Land Bank Board approvals: 

o Resolution 2024-1; 1/16/2024 

• Council approvals: 

o Resolution 240103; 2/29/2024 

• Board-approved disposition of nineteen (19) mixed-income homeownership units were 

approved: 4  condos @60% AMI, sales price - $199,990; 1  condo @80% AMI, sales price 

- $250,000; 6 condos @100% AMI, $280,000, eligible for Turn the Key; Three (3) market 

rate condominiums, Five (5) single family market rate homes, located at 4422, 4426-30 

Ludlow St; 18-20, 24-28, 30, 34-36 S 44th St. The approved change was for the 4  condos 

@60% AMI, sales price – from $199,990 to $229,900; 1  condo @80% AMI, sales price - 

from $250,000 to $265,000. The AMI of the Board-approved disposition remains at 60%, 

80% and 100% AMI. 

• The reason for the approval is due to significant lending and construction cost 

increases from the time of submission of the Board/Council approval and receipt of 

permits for the project to the current day. As a result, the homes cost more to build 

than was originally estimated. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 32 of 72



FY 2025 SETTLED DISPOSITIONS 
 

Withdrawal of Application Approvals: 

The approval for the following project has been withdrawn because the transmitted council 

resolution was not introduced: 

• Unsolicited Application – BMK Properties, LLC (Dover, Oakdale, Stanley) (CD5):  

o 2518, 2522, 2525, 2530, 2561 N. Dover Street; 2544, 2600, 2603, 2611, 2640, 2710, 2837, 

2931, 2935, 3019, 3021, 3027, 3029, 3031, 3039 W. Oakdale Street; 2423, 2425, 2437, 

2446, 2468, 2469, 2501, 2502, 2505, 2506, 2513, 2516, 2517, 2526, 2529, 2539, 2542, 

2556, 2567, 2609, 2620, 2621, 2626 N. Stanley Street. 

o assemblage for the development of 43 Turn the Key homes at 100% AMI, with a sales 

price of $280,000.  

o Council resolution was transmitted to Council and placed on file 11/21/2024 but not 

introduced. 

 

Turn the Key Update as of March 11, 2025: 

Ribbon Cuttings: 

• The ribbon cutting event on 3/4/25 at 10th and Cecil B. Moore, for 928 Cecil B. Moore (TTK 

Civetta Ribbon Cutting), went very well. The mayor attended, and it is important to note that 

the homeowner for the event is the Chief of Staff for Councilmember Kendra Brooks. This is 

the second staff member in her office who has purchased a TTK home. 

Upcoming Ribbon Cuttings: 

• 3/25/25: TTK Riverwards Ribbon Cutting, 3031 Martha Street, 11 am 

• 4/9/25: TTK Civetta Ribbon Cutting, 2141 North Franklin Street, 11 am 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 33 of 72



 

 

 

 

 

 
MARCH 11, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

 
MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM IV.A 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 34 of 72



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2025 - ___ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  
2444 ISLAND AVENUE AND 7401 WHEELER STREET 

TO CITY OF PHILADELPHIA 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 
“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of 
the Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, 
subject to the terms and conditions of Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interest of 
the Land Bank to convey the properties known as 2444 Island Avenue and 7401 Wheeler Street (the 
“Property”) to the City of Philadelphia (the “City”) for disposition, reuse and/or management as 
determined by the City. 

  
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Philadelphia Land Bank that: 
 

1. The conveyance of the Property to the City for One and 00/100 U.S. Dollar ($1.00) is in the best 
interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved. 
 

2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 
of the Philadelphia Code. 

 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 
and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 
be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 
Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 
 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on __________________. 

Approved by Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. ____________ dated _______________. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 35 of 72

http://library.amlegal.com/nxt/gateway.dll?f=jumplink$jumplink_x=Advanced$jumplink_vpc=first$jumplink_xsl=querylink.xsl$jumplink_sel=title;path;content-type;home-title;item-bookmark$jumplink_d=pennsylvania(philadelphia_pa)$jumplink_q=%5bfield%20folio-destination-name:%27Chapter%2016-400%27%5d$jumplink_md=target-id=JD_Chapter16-400


BOARD FACT SHEET  
Meeting of March 11, 2025 
Conveyance of Property to City of Philadelphia 

 

 

Nature of  Transact ion:  The Phi ladelphia  Land Bank (the PLB)  wi l l  convey t i t le  

of  these propert ies ,  which  are owned by the Phi ladelphia Redevelopment  

Author ity ,  to the City  of  Phi ladelphia  (City) :   

•  The conveyance of  the propert ies  wi l l  be  for  d isposit ion,  reuse ,  and 
management by the City,  speci f ica l ly  for the expansion of  the 
Schuylki l l  R iver  Tra i l  in  the Second (2nd)  Counci l  D istr ict .    

 

 

PROPERTY INFORMATION:   2444 Island Avenue (CD 2)  
     7401 Wheeler Street (CD 2) 
 

 

PLB Conveyance:   The propert ies  wi l l  be  conveyed to  the City  of  Phi ladelphia  

for  nominal  considerat ion,  pursuant to  Sect ion 2109 of  Land Bank Act ,  68 Pa.  

C.S .A.  §2109(d)(3 ) .  

  

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 36 of 72



 

 

 

 

 

 
MARCH 11, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

 
MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM V.A.1 

 
(TABLED) 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 37 of 72



 

 

 

 

 

 
MARCH 11, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

 
MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM V.A.2 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 38 of 72



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – ___ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF  
5108 CHESTER AVENUE, 6130 ELLSWORTH STREET, 4910 KINGSESSING AVENUE 

TO C SCHOFIELD FINISH CARPENTRY LLC 
 

WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 
“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the 
Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject 
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of 
Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 
the Land Bank to convey 5108 Chester Avenue, 6130 Ellsworth Street, and 4910 Kingsessing Avenue 
(collectively, the “Property”) to C Schofield Finish Carpentry LLC (the “Purchaser”). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 
Bank that: 
 
1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Three Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($3,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 
resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 
2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 
and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 
be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 
Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on __________________. 

Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. ___________ dated __________________. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 39 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

1. ADDRESS: 5108 Chester Ave.; 6130 Ellsworth St.; 4910 Kingsessing Ave.  

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION 

 

Zip Code: 19143 Census Tract: 007400, 008200 Council District: 3 

Zoning: RSA3, RSA5, RM1 Lot Area: 5,390 SF 

OPA Value: $263,600 Appraised Value: $140,000 

Redevelopment Area: N/A Urban Renewal Area: N/A 

3. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

Applicant Name: C Schofield Finish Carpentry LLC Type: Business / Legal Entity 

Entity Owners: Calvin Schofield 

Mailing Address: 8560 Forrest Ave, Philadelphia, PA 19150 

Authorized Contact: Calvin Schofield  

Application Date: September 12, 2024 

4. PROJECT INFORMATION 

Disposition Type: Non-Comp: 51% of Site as 
Affordable, Workforce, or Mixed Income Housing 

Strategic Plan Goal (Land Bank Only): Housing - Workforce 
(61%-120% AMI) 

Price Paid at Settlement: $3,000 Proposed Use: Residential 

Development Type: New Construction No. of Buildings: 3 

Units: 3 units - Residential End User: Sale to Homebuyer  

Gross Floor Area (sq. ft.): 3,600 SF Construction Cost / sq. ft.: $180 – Affordable, $164.29 MR  

Construction Costs: $626,000.00  
Project Funding Available: Committed and Verified - Applicant 
has provided documentation of available, committed funds in 
an amount no less than total project costs. 

Total Project Costs: $828,440.66  Mortgage Amount: $N/A 

5. APPROVALS, DEADLINES, EOP 

Agreement Executed: TBD Economic Opportunity Plan Goals:  MBE 25 % and WBE 10 % 

Land Bank Board Approval: TBD PRA Board Approval: N/A 

Construction Commencement Deadline: 3 months 
after settlement 

Construction Completion Deadline: 18 months after 
settlement 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 40 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY 

 A. How was title acquired?   
Title for the properties was acquired by the City of Philadelphia through Sheriff sale or by the PRA via condemnation. 
The properties currently owned by the City and the PRA have all the approvals to be transferred to the Land Bank. 
 

 B. Application Summary: 
C Schofield Finish Carpentry will develop 3 units of single-family homes.  The application was unsolicited and is 
qualified.  An EOP plan will apply for this project.  
 

 C. Unit Details:  

• 3 Total Units 

• Single-family homes 

• 6130 Ellsworth St. (Affordable at 100% AMI / $280K) - 2 stories, 3 bedroom, 2 bathroom, with unfinished 
basement at 1,100 SF. 

• 4910 Kingsessing Ave. (Affordable at 100% AMI / $280K) - 2 stories with false third-story front, 3 bedroom, 2 
bathroom, with unfinished basement at 1,100 SF. 

• 5108 Chester Ave. (Market Rate at $349K) 3 story unit, 3 bedrooms, 2.5 bathrooms, and an unfinished 
basement, front porch, and roof deck at 1400 SF. 

• Proposed units match the context of the community. 

• Eligible for Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn The Key Program. 
 

 

 D. Summary of Restrictions or Covenants:   
 

This transaction is subject to the following only if the box is checked:  

             ☒ Irrevocable Power of Attorney ☒Right of Re-entry/Reverter 
 

A Declaration of Restrictive Covenants will be placed on all the affordable units to ensure that they will remain 
affordable for a minimum of 15 years, and purchasers of the affordable units will be income-certified. 
 

 E. Community Outreach: 

• Staff received a completed Community Outreach Package to confirm a community meeting was held:  

               ☒ Yes   ☐ No  ☐ N/A 

• Meeting Date (if applicable): February 18, 2025 (22) 
 

7. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the disposition of 5108 Chester Ave., 6130 Ellsworth St., and 4910 Kingsessing Ave. to C Schofield 
Finish Carpentry for development as single-family homes. 

 

Prepared by: Todd Hestand, Senior Development Specialist 

Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez, Executive Director 
 

Attachments - If box below is checked, the item is attached. 

☒ Property photos 

☒ Site Map 

☒ Floor Plans 

☒ Sources and Uses (Excel spreadsheet) 

☒ Appraisal Summary Pages 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 41 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

SITE PHOTOS 

5108 Chester Ave 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 42 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

6130 Ellsworth St 

 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 43 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

4910 Kingsessing Ave 

 

 

 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 44 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

SITE MAP 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 45 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

FLOOR PLANS – 5108 CHESTER AVE 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 46 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

RENDERING / ELEVATIONS – 5108 CHESTER AVE 

 
 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 47 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 
FLOOR PLANS – 6130 ELLSWORTH ST 

 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 48 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 
RENDERING / ELEVATIONS – 6130 ELLSWORTH ST 

 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 49 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 
FLOOR PLANS – 4910 KINGSESSING AVE 

 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 50 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 
RENDERING / ELEVATIONS – 4910 KINGSESSING AVE 

 
 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 51 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 
  

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Committed  (Y/N) Source % Total

Senior Debt Yes $780,000.00 88.72%

Subordinate Debt Yes $99,164.00 11.28%

Developer Equity $0.00 0.00%

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $879,164.00 100.00%

USE OF FUNDS
HARD COSTS

ACQUISITION Cost % Total

Property Acquisition $3,000.00 0.36%

Closing Costs $5,123.00 0.62%

UNIT CONSTRUCTION

Complete table at bottom of page $626,000.00 75.56% # of Units 3
OTHER CONSTRUCTION Cost Per Unit $276,146.89

Landscaping $3,628.12 0.44% TOTAL COST $828,440.66
Permits $3,628.12 0.44%    
Clearance and Demolition $3,628.12 0.44% Price/unit Type 1 $280,000.00
Utility Connections & Tap Fees $3,628.12 0.44% Total Sales Type 1 $560,000.00

INFRASTRUCTURE Price/unit Type 2 $349,000.00
Streets and Sidewalks $3,628.12 0.44% Total Sales Type 2 $349,000.00
Water and Sewer $3,628.12 0.44% TOTAL SALES $909,000.00
Stormwater & Drainage $3,628.12 0.44% Selling cost - 3% $27,270.00
Impact Fees $3,628.12 0.44% NET SALES $881,730.00

OTHER HARD COSTS Expected Profit $53,289.34
Hard Cost Contingency $29,024.00 3.50% ROI 6.43%

TOTAL HARD COSTS $692,171.96 83.55%

SOFT COSTS 

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Site Planning $0.00 0.00%

Architecture & Engineering $35,000.00 4.22%

Legal $7,500.00 0.91%

Consultant $0.00 0.00%

Survey $3,628.12 0.44%

Market Study $0.00 0.00%

Environmental $3,628.12 0.44%

Organization Expense $0.00 0.00%

Other Consultants $7,500.00 0.91%

FINANCE COSTS

Construction Loan Interest $40,000.00 4.83%

Construction Origination $7,500.00 0.91%

Appraisal $2,000.00 0.24%

Construction Insurance $12,000.00 1.45%

Property Taxes $3,000.00 0.36%

OTHER SOFT COSTS

Holding Costs $0.00 0.00%

Soft Cost Contingency $14,512.46 1.75%

Developer Fee, if applicable $0.00 0.00%

TOTAL SOFT COSTS $136,268.70 16.45%

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST $828,440.66 100.00%

Construction/Rehab. Costs

Unit Description Unit Sq. Ft. Cost/Sq. Ft. Unit Cost # Units Total Const. Cost Total Sq. Ft. Total Sq. Ft. %

1 SINGLE FAMILY HOMES RFP 1,100 $180.00 $198,000.00 2 $396,000.00 2,200 61.1%

2 MARKET RATE 1,400 $164.29 $230,000.00 1 $230,000.00 1,400 38.9%

TOTALS 3 $626,000.00 3,600 100.0%

ROI CALCULATION

Accelerator Fund

Penn Community Bank

Indicate Source and, if applicable, describe

DEVELOPMENT BUDGET/ SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Applicant: C Schofield Finish Carpentry LLC

Property Address: 5108 Chester Ave; 6130 Ellsworth St; 4910 Kingsessing Ave

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 52 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

APPRAISAL AND CURRENT USE SUMMARY 

 

Lot 
# 

Location 
Use (vacant lot, 

side yard, garden, 
vacant building) 

Frontage 
(ft) 

Agency 
OPA Value  
(this year) 

Opinion Of Value 
/ Appraisal 

1 6130 Ellsworth St Vacant lot 25 PUB $46,200 $70,000 

2 4910 Kingsessing Ave Vacant lot 16 PUB $29,200 $30,000 

3 5108 Chester Ave Vacant lot 16 PRA $188,200 $40,000 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 53 of 72



 

 

 

 

 

 
MARCH 11, 2025 PLB BOARD MEETING 

 
MATERIALS FOR AGENDA ITEM V.A.3 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 54 of 72



RESOLUTION NO. 2025 – ___ 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONVEYANCE OF 2942 WEST WISHART STREET,  
2944 WEST WISHART STREET, 3323 WEST ALLEGHENY AVENUE,  

3212 NORTH 33RD STREET, 3216 NORTH NEWKIRK STREET 
TO RENEW LLC 

 
WHEREAS, Section 16-707 of the Philadelphia Code authorizes the Philadelphia Land Bank (the 

“Land Bank”) to convey, exchange, sell, transfer, lease, grant or mortgage interests in real property of the 
Land Bank in the form and by the method determined to be in the best interests of the Land Bank, subject 
to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council, and subject further to the terms and conditions of 
Chapter 16-404 of the Philadelphia Code. 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) has determined that it is in the best interests of 
the Land Bank to convey 2942 West Wishart Street, 2944 West Wishart Street, 3323 West Allegheny 
Avenue, 3212 North 33rd Street, and 3216 North Newkirk Street (collectively, the “Property”) to ReNew 
LLC (the “Purchaser”). 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Philadelphia Land 
Bank that: 
 
1. The conveyance of the Property to the Purchaser for Five Thousand and 00/100 U.S. Dollars 

($5,000.00) is in the best interests of the Land Bank and is hereby approved, subject to approval by 
resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 

 
2. The conveyance of the Property complies with all applicable terms and conditions of Section 16-404 

of the Philadelphia Code, subject to approval by resolution of Philadelphia City Council. 
 
3. Subject to the terms of this Resolution, the Executive Director and Senior Counsel are each hereby 

authorized, in the name of and on behalf of the Land Bank, to prepare, execute, deliver, and perform 
any and all agreements, deeds, and other documents, as may be necessary or desirable, to consummate 
the conveyance of the Property (collectively, the “Transaction Documents”) and, from time to time 
and at any time, amend, supplement, and modify the Transaction Documents, or any of them, as may 
be necessary or desirable.  The Transaction Documents and any amendments, supplements, and 
modifications thereto shall contain such terms and conditions as the Executive Director and Senior 
Counsel shall deem necessary or appropriate subject to the terms of this Resolution, and, when so 
executed and delivered by the Land Bank shall constitute the valid and binding obligations of the 
Land Bank. 

 
4. The Executive Director with the advice of Senior Counsel may modify this Resolution as may be 

necessary or desirable to carry out its purposes and intents. The Executive Director or Senior Counsel 
will notify the Board of all modifications to this Resolution at the next Board meeting following the 
date of such modifications. 

 
5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption by the Board. 

 

Adopted by Philadelphia Land Bank Board of Directors on __________________. 

Philadelphia City Council Resolution No. ___________ dated __________________. 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 55 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025 

1. ADDRESS: 3323 W. Allegheny Ave.; 3216 N. Newkirk St.; 2942 and 2944 W. Wishart St.; 3212 N. 33rd St.

2. PROPERTY INFORMATION

Zip Code: 19129, 19132 Census Tract: 010000, 017100 Council District: 4 

Zoning: RSA5, RM1 Lot Area: 5,504 SF 

OPA Value: $238,800 Appraised Value: $125,000 

Redevelopment Area: N/A Urban Renewal Area: N/A 

3. APPLICANT INFORMATION

Applicant Name: ReNew LLC Type: Business / Legal Entity 

Entity Owners: Mark Lawson 

Mailing Address: 3224 W Cheltenham Ave, Philadelphia, PA 19150 

Authorized Contact: Mark Lawson 

Application Date: April 21, 2023 

4. PROJECT INFORMATION

Disposition Type: Non-Comp: 51% of Site as 
Affordable, Workforce, or Mixed Income Housing 

Strategic Plan Goal (Land Bank Only): Housing - Workforce 
(61%-120% AMI) 

Price Paid at Settlement: $5,000 Proposed Use: Residential 

Development Type: New Construction No. of Buildings: 5 

Units: 5 units - Residential End User: Sale to Homebuyer 

Gross Floor Area (sq. ft.): 6,000 SF Construction Cost / sq. ft.: $175 

Construction Costs: $1,050,000.00 
Project Funding Available: Committed and Verified - Applicant 
has provided documentation of available, committed funds in 
an amount no less than total project costs. 

Total Project Costs: $1,334,174.50 Mortgage Amount: $N/A 

5. APPROVALS, DEADLINES, EOP

Agreement Executed: TBD Economic Opportunity Plan Goals:  MBE 25 % and WBE 10 % 

Land Bank Board Approval: TBD PRA Board Approval: N/A 

Construction Commencement Deadline: 3 months 
after settlement 

Construction Completion Deadline: 18 months after 
settlement 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 56 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

6. DEVELOPMENT SUMMARY 

 A. How was title acquired?   
Title was acquired by the City of Philadelphia through Sheriff sale or by the PRA via condemnation. The properties 
currently owned by the City and the PRA have all the approvals to be transferred to the Land Bank. 
 

 B. Application Summary: 
ReNew will develop five (5) units of single-family housing. The application was unsolicited and is qualified.  An EOP 
plan will apply for this project.  
 

 C. Unit Details:  
Affordable 

• 3 Units (2942 and 2944 W. Wishart St. and 3216 N. Newkirk St.) 

• Single-family homes 

• Maximum sale price of $280,000 

• Target households with incomes at or below 100% AMI 

• 2 stories, without basements, containing 3 bedrooms and 2 bathrooms 

• Approximately 1,000 SF each 

• Eligible for Neighborhood Preservation Initiative’s Turn The Key Program 

Market Rate 

• 2 Units (3323 W. Allegheny Ave. and 3212 N. 33rd St.) 

• Single-family homes 

• Maximum sale price of $400,000 

• 2 stories, with finished basements, containing 3 bedrooms and 3.5 bathrooms 

• Approximately 1,500 SF each 
 

 D. Summary of Restrictions or Covenants:   
 

This transaction is subject to the following only if the box is checked:  

             ☒ Irrevocable Power of Attorney ☒Right of Re-entry/Reverter 
 

A Declaration of Restrictive Covenants will be placed on all the affordable units to ensure that they will remain 
affordable for a minimum of 15 years, and purchasers of the affordable units will be income-certified. 
 

 E. Community Outreach: 

• Staff received a completed Community Outreach Package to confirm a community meeting was held:  

               ☒ Yes   ☐ No  ☐ N/A 

• Meeting Date (if applicable): June 20, 2024 (10). 
 

7. STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends the disposition of 3323 W. Allegheny Ave.; 3216 N. Newkirk St.; 2942 and 2944 W. Wishart St.; 
and 3212 N. 33rd St. to ReNew for development as single-family homes. 

 

Prepared by: Todd Hestand, Senior Development Specialist 

Reviewed by: Angel Rodriguez, Executive Director 
 

Attachments - If box below is checked, the item is attached. 

☒ Property photos 

☒ Site Map 

☒ Floor Plans 

☒ Sources and Uses (Excel spreadsheet) 

☒ Appraisal Summary Pages 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 57 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

SITE PHOTOS 

3323 W. Allegheny Ave. 

    

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 58 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3216 N. Newkirk St. 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 59 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

 

2942 W. Wishart St.     2944 W. Wishart St. 

    

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 60 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3212 N. 33rd St. 

      

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 61 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

SITE MAP 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 62 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3323 W. ALLEGHENY AVE. FLOOR PLANS (16FT) – Market Rate 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 63 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3323 W. ALLEGHENY AVE. ELEVATION – Market Rate 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 64 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3216 N. NEWKIRK ST. FLOOR PLANS (14FT) - Affordable 
 
 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 65 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3216 N. NEWKIRK ST. ELEVATIONS – Affordable 
 

 
 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 66 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

2942 AND 2944 W. WISHART ST. FLOOR PLANS (15FT) - Affordable 

 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 67 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

2942 AND 2944 W. WISHART ST. ELEVATIONS - Affordable 

 

 
 
 
 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 68 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3212 N. 33RD St. FLOOR PLANS (16FT) – Market Rate 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 69 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

3212 N. 33RD St. ELEVATIONS – Market Rate 

 

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 70 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

SOURCE OF FUNDS

Committed  (Y/N) Source % Total

Senior Debt Yes $990,000.00 74.20%

Subordinate Debt Yes $265,000.00 19.86%

Developer Equity No $0.00 0.00%

Other - describe to the right Yes $79,174.50 5.93%

TOTAL SOURCE OF FUNDS $1,334,174.50 100.00%

USE OF FUNDS
HARD COSTS

ACQUISITION Cost % Total

Property Acquisition $5,000.00 0.37%

Closing Costs $214.00 0.02%

UNIT CONSTRUCTION

Complete table at bottom of page $1,050,000.00 78.70% # of Units 5

OTHER CONSTRUCTION Cost Per Unit $266,834.90

Landscaping $7,500.00 0.56% TOTAL COST $1,334,174.50

Permits $9,600.00 0.72%

Clearance and Demolition $10,000.00 0.75% Price/unit Type 1 $280,000.00

Utility Connections & Tap Fees $0.00 0.00% Total Sales Type 1 $840,000.00

INFRASTRUCTURE Price/unit Type 2 $400,000.00

Streets and Sidewalks $3,000.00 0.22% Total Sales Type 2 $800,000.00

Water and Sewer $2,500.00 0.19% TOTAL SALES $1,640,000.00

Stormwater & Drainage $2,500.00 0.19% Selling cost - 3% $49,200.00

Impact Fees $2,500.00 0.19% NET SALES $1,590,800.00

OTHER HARD COSTS Expected Profit $256,625.50

Hard Cost Contingency $70,640.70 5.29% ROI 19.2%

TOTAL HARD COSTS $1,171,454.70 87.80%

SOFT COSTS 

PROFESSIONAL FEES

Site Planning $0.00 0.00%

Architecture & Engineering $33,000.00 2.47%

Legal $0.00 0.00%

Consultant $0.00 0.00%

Survey $0.00 0.00%

Market Study $0.00 0.00%

Environmental $11,875.00 0.89%

Organization Expense $0.00 0.00%

Other Consultants $0.00 0.00%

FINANCE COSTS

Construction Loan Interest $82,073.82 6.15%

Construction Origination $12,626.74 0.95%

Appraisal $1,750.00 0.13%

Construction Insurance $10,000.00 0.75%

Property Taxes $4,993.00 0.37%

OTHER SOFT COSTS

Holding Costs $0.00 0.00%

Soft Cost Contingency $2,651.24 0.20%

Developer Fee, if applicable $0.00 0.00%

Other - describe in space to the right $1,250.00 0.09%

Other - describe in space to the right $2,500.00 0.19%

TOTAL SOFT COSTS $162,719.80 12.20%

TOTAL DEVELOPMENT COST $1,334,174.50 100.00%

Construction/Rehab. Costs

Unit Description Unit Sq. Ft. Cost/Sq. Ft. Unit Cost # Units Total Const. Cost Total Sq. Ft. Total Sq. Ft. %

1 Affordable Units (3 bedrooms, 2 baths) 1,000 $175.00 $175,000.00 3 $525,000.00 3,000 50.0%

2 Market Rate Units (3 bedrooms, 3.5 bathrooms) 1,500 $175.00 $262,500.00 2 $525,000.00 3,000 50.0%

TOTALS 5 $1,050,000.00 6,000 100.0%

Approval fee

Marketing

ROI CALCULATION

First Trust Bank

PAF

Reinvestment Fund

Indicate Source and, if applicable, describe

DEVELOPMENT BUDGET/ SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS

Applicant: ReNew, LLC

Property Address: 3233 Allegheny Ave, 3216 N Newkirk St, 2942 W Wishart St, 2944 W Wishart St,  3212 N 33rd St

 

 

  

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 71 of 72



DEVELOPMENT FACT SHEET 
Last Updated: March 6, 2025  

 

 

APPRAISAL AND CURRENT USE SUMMARY 

Lot 

# 
Location 

Use (vacant lot, 
side yard, 

garden, vacant 
building) 

Agency 
Frontage 

(ft) 

OPA Value  

(this year) 

Opinion Of Value 

/ Appraisal 

1 3323 W Allegheny Ave Vacant lot PLB 16 $103,400 $40,000 

2 3216 N Newkirk St Vacant lot PLB 14 $16,000 $15,000 

3 2942 W Wishart St Vacant lot PRA 15 $18,600 $20,000 

4 2944 W Wishart St Vacant lot PLB 15 $18,600 $20,000 

5 3212 N 33rd St Vacant lot PUB 16 $82,200 $30,000 

 

 

Philadelphia Land Bank Board Meeting Package for March 11, 2025 Page 72 of 72




